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INMATE TELEPHONE & VIDEO VISITATION SERVICES  
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IMPORTANT:  SUBMIT PROPOSAL IN SEALED PACKAGE WITH PROPOSAL NUMBER, CLOSING DATE AND BUYER’S NAME 
MARKED CLEARLY ON THE OUTSIDE TO: 

COUNTY OF FRESNO, Purchasing 
4525 EAST HAMILTON AVENUE, 2nd Floor 

FRESNO, CA  93702-4599 

CLOSING DATE OF PROPOSAL WILL BE AT 2:00 P.M., ON AUGUST 25, 2014. 
PROPOSALS WILL BE CONSIDERED LATE WHEN THE OFFICIAL PURCHASING TIME CLOCK READS 2:00 P.M. 

All proposal information will be available for review after contract award. 

Clarification of specifications is to be directed to:  Caleb J. Brooks, phone (559) 600-7124,  
e-mail cbrooks@co.fresno.ca.us, FAX (559) 600-7126. 

NOTE THE FOLLOWING AND ATTACHED ADDITIONS, DELETIONS AND/OR CHANGES TO THE 
REQUIREMENTS OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NUMBER: 915-5281 AND INCLUDE THEM IN YOUR 
RESPONSE.  PLEASE SIGN AND RETURN THIS ADDENDUM WITH YOUR PROPOSAL. 

 The closing date of Proposal has been extended to August 25, 2014 at 2:00 P.M. 

 Provided in this addendum are bidders questions and requests for clarifications from the pre-bid 
conference/site inspection and/or submitted prior to the questions period cut-off. County responses 
are provided following each question. 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF ADDENDUM NUMBER ONE (1) TO RFP 915-5281 

COMPANY NAME:   
(PRINT) 

SIGNATURE:   

NAME & TITLE:   
(PRINT) 
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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
Q1. How many free on-site video visitations did Fresno County want to allow? 

A1. Two (2) thirty minute visits per week will be allowed per inmate. 

Q2. Where did Fresno County want to place the Video Visitation monitors? 

A2. The Fresno County Sheriff's Office is interested in placing 13 monitors in the Main Jail, 6 in 
the North Annex Jail and 6 in the South Annex Jail; however, depending on the vendor and 
current facility structure this could change. 

Q3. Clarify the Rights of Ownership per the RFP pg18? 

A3. The vendor retains ownership of property (we only want data). 

Q4. What is the length of retention for storage of the Video Visitation? 

A4. The retention should be 30 days. 

Q5. Can Fresno County explain the commissioned and non-commission rates? 

A5. The potential for non-commissioned rates may be mandated in the near future.  Consider 
and respond to any affect that this proposed bill may have upon your proposal to include 
rates of services (Assembly Bill (AB) 1876). 

Q6. What languages are currently provided for the Inmate Information telephone 
system? 

A6. English, Spanish, Hmong, Vietnamese, Loa, and Punjabi. 

Q7. What are the current charges associated with VINES? 

A7. Per VINE Services Agreement, the recurring fees for the VINE Services to the county jail 
will be $61,246.80. 

Q8. How many visiting telephones are in the facility? 

A8. There are 114 set of visiting phones throughout all three (3) facilities. 

Q9. What are the approved surcharges and fees for all call types that Legacy is charging 
and may not be directly reflected in the rates provided in the RFP? 

A9. There is a $10.99 set up fee for the Family and Friends prepaid account. 

There is a $5.99 replenishing fee for the Family and Friends prepaid account. 

There is a $5.99 account closing fee for the Family and Friends prepaid account. 

Q10. Would the County be interested in a more efficient solution that integrates inmate 
information into the inmate calling platform and is accessible by both inmates and 
friends and family? 

A10. Yes 
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Q11. Will the chosen vendor be required to provide cabling for visitation phones? 

A11. Yes. 

Q12. Are visitation phones currently cabled and recorded? 

A12. Yes. 

Q13. Has the facility undergone and significant increases or decreases in ADP in the last 
12 months? 

A13. No. 

Q14. Please provide ADP statistics by month for each of the last 12 months. 

A14.  June 2013 Avg ADP 2930 

 July 2013 Avg ADP 2914 

 August 2013 Avg ADP 2921 

 September 2013 Avg ADP 2891 

 October 2013 Avg ADP 2845 

 November 2013 Avg ADP 2777 

 December 2013 Avg ADP 2759 

 January 2014 Avg ADP 2776 

 February 2014 Avg ADP 2791 

 March 2014 Avg ADP 2769 

 April 2014 Avg ADP 2721 

 May 2014 Avg ADP 2730 

 June 2014 Avg ADP 2752 

Q15. Please provide the last 12 months of call traffic data broken out by all call type. 

A15.  

Call Type Call Count Call Duration 

Canada 115 1843 

InterLata 25619 349642 

IntraLata 84647 1294673 

Local 442732 6316791 

International 130 1155 

Totals 578862 8313746 
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Q16. Is there a connection charge in addition to the rates listed on page 26? 

A16. No 

Q17. Is there an additional fee to the family and friends for setting up a prepaid account? 

A17. Yes, $10.99 set up fee; $5.99 replenish fee 

Q18. Is there an additional fee to the family and friends for collect calling to a cell 
phone? 

A18. No. 

Q19. Is there an additional fee to the family and friends for refunds? 

A19. Yes, a $5.99 cancellation fee. 

Q20. How many numbers can the family and friends put on the initial set up? 

A20. Each number has to have its own Family and Friends number. 

Q21. Please confirm the average stay for inmates or the number of inmates booked per 
year. 

A21. See ADP statistics in #14 above. 

Q22. Does the current inmate phone provider currently take any deductions from 
commission revenue, if so what are the deductions and how much? 

A22. No deductions are taken out. 

Q23. Please provide the list of current fees charged. 

A23. The current rates are stated in the RFP. In addition to the rates, Legacy also has fees 
associated with their Friends and Family program. Those rates are as follows: Set up Fee: 
$10.99; Replenish Fee: $5.99; Cancellation Fee: $5.99. 

Q24. What is the average size of a monthly commission check received by the County? 
Can the County provide 24, or even 12 months of commission check amounts? 

A24. Please see attached spreadsheet 

Q25. How many visits are used on an average month? 

A25. The monthly average is 9780 visits a month. 

Q26. How many visits are paid-for visits in an average month? 

A26. None. 

Q27. How many tentative visits by bail bondsman and Public Defenders are expected in 
an average month? 

A27. Unknown. 
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Q28. Should financial statements be submitted with the proposal? The Proposal Content 
Requirements lists that they should be included, but Section X line F states that 
financial information is to be provided after the RFP closes and to not provide with 
the proposal. 

A28. Do not include with your proposal. The County may request them after the bid close, if 
necessary. 

Q29. Can you provide the last 12 months of revenue broken out by Local, IntraLata, 
InterLata, Insterstate, and International. 

A29. See attached spreadsheet. 

Q30. Can you please provide the annual amount of calls for each of the following 
languages: Hmong, Vietnamese, Loa, and Punjab? 

A30. Currently records are not broken down by different languages. 

Q31. How many visitation phones does Fresno County anticipate to be replace during 
the first year and subsequent years of the agreement? 

A31. All 114 visiting phones should be replaced within the first year. All visiting phones should 
be replaced as needed thereafter. 

Q32. How many inmates are booked per day? How long do they stay in booking? 

A32. The average daily number of bookings is 121 and the average amount of time spent in 
booking is 4.5 hours. 

Q33. Are there any monthly limits per inmate for Total Call Minutes? 

A33. No limit. 

Q34. Are there any limits per inmate for Personal Allowed Number (PAN) lists? 

A34. No limit. 

Q35. Please provide Monthly Call Details by Facility which shows the following for the 
last 12 months: 

 Collect Calls:  number of Calls, number of Minutes & Gross Revenue for Local, 
IntraLata, InterLata and Interstate call categories 

 Called Party Prepaid Calls:  number of Calls, number of Minutes & Gross Revenue 
for Local, IntraLata, InterLata and Interstate call categories 

 Prepaid PIN Debit Calls:  number of Calls, number of Minutes & Gross Revenue for 
Local, IntraLata, InterLata, Interstate and International call categories 

 Free Local Calls:  number of Calls & number of Minutes 

 Pro Per Calls:  number of Calls & number of Minutes for Local, IntraLata, InterLata, 
Interstate and International call categories 
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 Any other type of Calling Options not listed above:  number of Calls, number of 
Minutes & Gross Revenue for Local, IntraLata, InterLata, Interstate and International 
call categories 

A35. See Q&A #15 and attached revenue spreadsheet. 

Q36. Please provide the monthly revenues and commissions paid for the last 12 months. 

A36. See attached revenue spreadsheet. 

Q37. Are any ICE inmates housed? If so, what is the average monthly number of ICE 
inmates? 

A37. Yes. The monthly average of ICE inmates is 114. 

Q38. Please provide visitation hours by facility. 

A38. North Jail and South Jail are 0800-1800 hours daily. Main Jail is 0800-1515, 1900-2115 
hours daily. 

Q39. Please provide monthly visitation statistics for the last 12 months for all facilities. 

A39. The monthly average is 9780 visits a month. 

Q40. Please provide the VINE costs. 

A40. See Q&A #7. 

Q41. What is the current amount of time for call recordings to be accessible online?  
What is the current amount of time for call detail reports to be accessible online?  
Please confirm these are the length of time required. 

A41. The call recordings and detail reports can be accessible online for 12 months.  This is the 
amount of time desired. 

Q42. Regarding the Leave-Behind Solution (page 30 of the RFP) that was discussed at 
the Vendor Conference, please provide clarification regarding the length of time the 
county requires it to be accessible. 

A42. The Leave-Behind Solution should be easily accessible for seven (7) years for the audio 
recordings of the Inmate Telephone System. 

Q43. Regarding the “limited number of ‘free’ on-site visits when using the video 
visitation” specified on page 27 of the RFP, please provide the exact number 
vendor is required to provide. 

A43. 500 per week. 

Q44. Please confirm the length of time for Video Visitation recordings storage 
requirements.  At Vendor Conference, it was stated possibly 30 days. 

A44. 30 days is the storage requirement. 
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Q45. Please provide the total number of evaluation points for each of the 3 categories on 
page 34: Cost, Capability and Qualifications and Management Plan. 

A45. Proposals will not be rated on a points scale. 

Q46. Please provide a list of the current fees that Legacy is charging in addition to the 
rates charged for inmate telephone calls. 

A46. See Q&A #23. 

Q47. How will the county evaluate each company’s rate offer? 

A47. The County is reviewing a rate service for our citizens/clients that allows a reasonable 
rate based upon our County’s demographics. It is in the County’s best interest to receive 
the lowest possible rates for inmates and their families while maintaining a high level of 
service. 

Q48. How will the county evaluate each company’s commission offer? 

A48. The County is interested in maintaining our programs/services to inmates based upon our 
current commission rate of 56%, however, we would consider a different rate if 
services/hardware levels are increased. We are seeking the best overall offer. 

Q49. How will the county evaluation each company’s video visitation rate? 

A49. The County is reviewing a rate service for our citizens/clients that allows a reasonable 
rate based upon our County’s demographics. It is in the County’s best interest to receive 
the lowest possible rates for inmates and their families while maintaining a high level of 
service. 

Q50. How will the county evaluation each company’s video visitation commission offer? 

A50. A50. The County is interested in maintaining our programs/services to inmates based 
upon our current commission rate of 56%, however, we would consider a different rate if 
services/hardware levels are increased. We are seeking the best overall offer. 

Q51. Please provide the exact number of visitation phones currently in place. 

A51. There are 114 visitation units currently in place. 

Q52. Please provide the exact number of TDD units are currently in place, per location. 

A52. There are three (3) TDD units within the County Jail. 

Q53. Please note the questions below regarding the following on page 3 of RFP: 

“The Sheriff’s Office will require the system to have the capability for on premise 
and off premise recording and monitoring of all inmate telephones.” 

Question:  Can the county please clarify the purpose of the off and on premise 
requirement? Is this related to being able to pull recordings and monitor calls from 
both on site and off site locations? 

A53. The off premise is for investigatory purposes so that authorized Law Enforcement can 
monitor and pull recordings as needed. 
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Q54. Please note the question below regarding the following on page 21 of RFP: 

“The contractor will be required to install and maintain a turn-key telephone system 
for inmate use and other appurtenances within the County’s detention facilities. 
The system must be of an open architecture to allow ease of integration with 
existing or future systems that operate on either PC based networks, mainframes, 
or other platforms. The contractor must provide documentation as to the 
compatibility of their system.” 

Question: What kind of documentation would the county require? 

A54. The vendor should give a description of how their system will integrate with the Fresno 
Detention Facilities Jail Management System (Motorola/Offendertrak). 

Q55. Who is your current Jail Management System Provider? 

A55. Motorola/OffenderTrak done through our in-house IT Department. 

Q56. Who is your current Commissary Provider? 

A56. Canteen of Fresno. 

Q57. Page13- Termination- Is your current contract with Legacy governed by this right? 

A57. Yes. 

Q58. Page 22 Item 1a- “The county would prefer an on-site technician Monday-Friday 
during normal business hours” Does Legacy currently provide such a technician? 

A58. Yes. 

Q59. In order to provide our best possible offer, it is very important to have historical call 
volume information for all call types. Call volume data is necessary to estimate 
costs as well as potential revenues. The current vendor has access to this 
information, so distributing the information to other vendors in a timely fashion will 
ensure a level playing field for all bidders. Please provide as much data as possible 
from the following chart: 

A59. Below is the average per month. Revenue is on attached spreadsheet. Debit was 
changed to Credit. 

Call Category 
# of Calls 
Per Month 

# of Minutes 
Per Month 

Total Revenue 
Per Month 

LOCAL – Collect 4379 524948  

INTRALATA – Collect 928 11223  

INTERLATA – Collect 1268 3989  

INTERSTATE – Collect 34 452  

LOCAL – Credit 6456 100516  

INTRALATA – Credit 1299 19632  

INTERLATA – Credit 521 6761  
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INTERSTATE - Credit 103 1347  

International - Credit 2 24  

LOCAL – PrePaid Collect 14645 182074  

INTRALATA – PrePaid Collect 2824 41814  

INTERLATA – PrePaid Collect 807 10550  

INTERSTATE – PrePaid Collect 53 654  

 

Q60. Also, in order to help us evaluate call volumes and recognize additional revenue 
potential, it is very helpful to have the rates currently being charged to called 
parties under the current contract. 

A60. All current rates are in the RFP. 

Q61. Please provide a copy of the current inmate phone service agreement. 

A61. Attached. 

Q62. Please provide the commission percentage currently received on inmate telephone 
revenue, an average of monthly commissions received over the past year from the 
current vendor, and copies of commission statements (if available. 

A62. Commission is currently 56% plus $6,621.00 monthly. See spreadsheet for last 12 months 
of commission. 

Q63. In order to ensure a level playing field for all bidders, please confirm that the 
successful vendor must provide new equipment.  Also, please verify that this 
applies to both new potential bidders and the incumbent provider. 

A63. Telephones should be new or in good working condition. Video visitation should also be in 
good working condition (refurbished, etc. is acceptable.) 

Q64. Please provide the criteria and point schedule that will be used to evaluate and 
compare proposals.  Will multiple people be involved in scoring the proposals?  If 
so, which departments will be involved (e.g., finance, procurement, investigative 
personnel, etc.)?  

A64. Proposals will not be rated on a point scale. The evaluation criteria are based on the 
strengths and weaknesses of each proposal to determine the best overall offer.  The 
review team has a diverse background in finance, technology, law enforcement, 
administration, etc.  

Q65. Is the inmate trust account managed through the commissary system or the Jail 
Management System or other system?  If other, please specify 

A65. The County’s Jail Management System (JMS) is Motorola’s OffenderTrak.  JMS does 
manage the Inmates Trust Fund, which can be accessed to determine how much money 
is in the inmate’s individual account. The Fresno County Sheriff's Office Business Office 
oversees the actual Inmate Trust Account. 
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Q66. The RFP requires that inmate phone vendors provide Collect, Prepaid and Debit 
calling options, and that we provide rates and commissions for Collect, Prepaid and 
Debit calling for evaluation purposes. Please confirm that these are the only types 
of calls required or allowed by the County. 

A66. All of the above along with the single call payment by credit/debit card.  

Q67. Some providers may offer other types of phone calls, outside of the traditional 
options of Collect, Prepaid, and Debit calling. These non-traditional types of calls 
may include but not be limited to single-call payment by credit/debit card, and text 
message billing for a single call via wireless carrier. Because these billing options 
do not fall into the traditional categories of Collect, Prepaid and Debit calling, the 
calls are often billed at a much higher rate than the rates approved by the County, 
and the revenue is often excluded from the commissionable gross revenue amount.  

Please confirm that these types of billing options outside the required Collect, 
Prepaid and Debit options will not be allowed by the County. 

Please confirm that these types of billing options outside the required Collect, 
Prepaid and Debit options will not be allowed by the County. 

A67. See Q&A #66 (above). You can place it in the etc. box of the rate chart. 

Q68. According to Requirement #15 on page 25 of the RFP, the County is requiring the 
vendor to all charges associated with VINE. What is the current cost for VINE and 
any anticipated costs during the life of the contract? 

A68. Per VINE Services Agreement, the recurring fees for the VINE Services to the county jail 
will be $61,246.80 per year 

Q69. Are the TouchPay kiosks in the lobbies of each facility provided by the current 
phone vendor, or are the kiosks provided under a separate contract? 

A69. They are under a separate contract. 

Q70. In regards to the County’s requirements for audited Financial Statements, if audited 
Financial Statements are available does the County want us to provide them with 
the proposal, or should we be prepared to provide them upon request? If audited 
Financial statements are required to be submitted with the proposal, we request 
that for privately held companies the confidentiality be protected under the Trade 
Secret protection outlined in the RFP. 

A70. Be prepared to provide them upon request. Do not submit with your proposal. 
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Q71. During the walkthrough, it was noted that today there are approximately 77 phones 
that are used for “Inmate Information” Telephonic Requests only.  In Requirement 
#13 on page 24 of the RFP, the County states that the telephone sets used for 
“Inmate Information” requests shall be separate from those telephones currently 
used to make outside calls. But the requirement also states that the “Inmate 
Information” system telephones shall be capable of being programmed by the user 
to schedule time for “Inmate Information” requests and regular use for outside 
calling. As an alternative, would the County like to have all phones capable of 
providing both inmate information and phone calling, or does the County prefer 
that these phones be separate as they are provided today? 

A71. All Inmate Telephones and Inmate Information phones should be programmed the same.  
All should be allowed to make calls during Facility Telephone hours and all should provide 
“Inmate Information” during the Facility scheduled time. 

Q72. Requirement #23 on page 29 of the RFP states that the County would like to have 
visitation phones upgraded to allow access to visitation records. How many 
visitation phone sets does the County have currently? Are they wired to the inmate 
telephone system for recording and monitoring today? 

A72. There are 114 sets of visitation phones and they are all currently wired to the inmate 
telephone system for recording and monitoring. 

Q73. Can the County please clarify where video visitation units are to be installed at the 
facilities? 

A73. The Fresno County Sheriff's Office is interested in placing 13 monitors in the Main Jail, 6 
in the North Annex Jail and 6 in the South Annex Jail. 

Q74. Are the 77 Inmate Information phones mentioned in Requirement #13 on page 25 of 
the RFP included in the total phone count of 491 phones? 

A74. Yes. 

Q75. What additional equipment, besides inmate telephones, is the County requiring? 
Please fill out the following table with quantities required. 

A75.  

Equipment Quantity 

Pay phones None 

TDD/TTY devices Three (3) TDD devices 

Cart phones One (1) cart phone 

Hands-free phones 23 Hands Free 

Cordless phones None 

Enclosures None 

Pedestals None 

Workstations with Printers None 

Laptops None 
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Q76. As we discussed during our Jail Site Visit July 9, you are under contract with 
Siemens by which they are providing visitation phones.  I believe that it was 
Lieutenant Copher who indicated that his Department wants their new visitation 
phones to operate using PINs, in order to identify the inmate who is involved in the 
visitation.  In order to accomplish this, the phones will need keypads, which the 
current Siemens phones do not have.  Either your selected vendor will need to 
provide phones with keypads, or Siemens will need to supply them.  The question 
boils down to who will provide the keypad phones? 

A76. Once the new phone vendor is selected and the contract is in place the visiting phones 
will be the responsibility of the NEW phone contractor.  Siemens will not be responsible 
for the visiting phones. 

 



Legacy 12 Month Phone Revenue

MONTH LOCAL INTRALATA INTERLATA INTERSTATE INTERNATIONAL TOTAL REVENUE COMMISSION CONTRACT EXT
Jun‐13 125,263.93$      28,071.40$     24,082.60$    6,906.45$      281.84$                184,606.22$        111,955.70$      6,621.00$        
Jul‐13 122,090.07$      30,451.63$     27,636.95$    7,756.00$      593.74$                188,528.39$        105,638.39$      6,621.00$        

Aug‐13 119,715.82$      30,274.01$     24,651.25$    8,304.77$      440.84$                183,386.69$        102,751.45$      6,621.00$        
Sep‐13 108,755.57$      27,986.02$     21,732.00$    7,965.39$      335.94$                166,774.92$        93,466.38$        6,621.00$        
Oct‐13 109,832.90$      30,307.05$     22,837.30$    ‐$               54.57$                  163,031.82$        94,579.53$        6,621.00$        
Nov‐13 112,718.67$      29,467.50$     22,540.85$    ‐$               ‐$                      164,727.02$        92,353.05$        6,621.00$        
Dec‐13 113,450.03$      27,428.50$     22,063.15$    ‐$               55.56$                  162,997.24$        91,605.75$        6,621.00$        
Jan‐14 120,229.15$      33,006.19$     23,285.30$    ‐$               68.43$                  176,589.07$        99,313.65$        6,621.00$        
Feb‐14 114,715.81$      33,397.85$     19,694.65$    ‐$               86.29$                  167,894.60$        94,388.18$        6,621.00$        
Mar‐14 132,595.40$      39,448.34$     28,094.40$    ‐$               83.32$                  200,221.46$        112,261.25$      6,621.00$        
Apr‐14 116,161.30$      37,411.55$     21,351.00$    ‐$               76.27$                  175,000.12$        98,142.95$        6,621.00$        
May‐14 118,702.93$      38,809.93$     20,490.50$    ‐$               ‐$                      178,003.36$        99,753.38$        6,621.00$        

TOTALS 1,414,231.58$  386,059.97$  278,459.95$  30,932.61$   2,076.80$           2,111,760.91$     1,196,209.66$  79,452.00$      
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